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Figure 1--Small Stuff Rockford, Illinois  Figure 2-Aerial View Camp Grant  

DONõT SWEAT THE SMALL STUFF by Neal E. Danielson  

 

     This is the 45
th

 in a series of articles relating to small post cards and small covers so if you have any in your collection that you would 

like to share please let us know.   
 

     
 

 
 

          This Small Stuff comes to us from Rockford, Illinois by way of Central City, Nebraska and it measures 

4 1/8 X 2 13/16 inches (Figure 1).  Rockford, Illinois is located in the far northern part of the State and spans 

both banks of the Rock River and is often called ñThe Forest Cityò.  This mid-size city is located in 

Winnebago County, Illinois.  Rockford was first settled in 1834-35 by three families and established 

themselves on the west bank of the River.  The settlement initially called Midway but quickly became known 

as Rockford based on the ófordô that spanned the River.  The post office became a reality in 1837 with Daniel 

S. Haight being appointed postmaster and the settlement was incorporated in 1839 as a village, but it would 

be 1852 before it was chartered as a city.  The city of Rockford had a very slow beginning but eventually it 

began to expand after about 10 years and became the County Seat of Winnebago County.  The Rockford 

Water Power Company became a reality in 1851 and the Galena and Chicago Union Railroad arrived in the 

city in 1852.  These two events was the beginning of an industrial center of Illinois and noted for the 

production of the John H. Manny reaper and other agricultural machinery. 

 

        The Rockford Union Furniture Company was organized in 1876, the first of some 25 area furniture 

factories that formed as cooperatives.  By the 1880s the Rockfordôs Swedish-born craftsmen and capitalists 

brought the city to a point that it was the second largest furniture manufacturing center in the United States, 

behind Grand Rapids, Michigan.  By the turn of the Century changes had to be made due to war time and 

economic changes resulting in diversity in its industrial base.  The oldest surviving Harley Davidson 

dealership was founded in Rockford in 1910 as a family owned business by the Kegelôs.  In 1917 the United 

States Army opened Camp Grant (Figure 2), one of the largest training facilities in the nation for World War 

I infantry. 

 

        On December 23, 1915 the post-office in Rockford cancelled a letter sent to a Mrs. John Bankson in 

Central City, Nebraska.  William H. Hifferon was postmaster at the time being appointed to the position 

January 4, 1915 and would remain postmaster until October 10, 1921.  The cover is franked with a one cent 

George Washington stamp (Scott #375) and tied to the cover with a seven wavy line circular date stamp from 

Rockford, Ill on Dec 23 1915.   
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Figure 3-Merrick County Courthouse 

               Central City, Nebraska is located in Merrick County, Nebraska and serves the city as the County Seat.  

The town was first passed by on the Mormon Trail in 1847 and was followed by the Oregon Trail and the 

California Trail.  It so happened that a huge cottonwood tree, called Lone Tree, was a landmark by the 

pioneers, thus the settlement was first called ñLone Treeò when a post office was established and Edwin 

Parker was appointed postmaster on June 10, 1867.  It would remain Lone Tree until April 26, 1875.  

Benjamin F. Lisk would service as postmaster since February 23, 1875 when it changed to Central City and 

remain until May 18, 1875.  The first inhabitants of Lone Tree were the Pawnee and in the late 1700s battles 

between members of the tribes resulted in some 400 being killed near Lone Tree. 

 

         The name of the settlement changed to Central City when a petition was presented to the Merrick 

County Court (Figure 3) requesting the change from Lone Tree to Central City.  The name ñLone Treeò was 

viewed as leaving the impression that the area was desolate, poor and uncivilized, thus would not bring in 

new settlers and thereby was a detriment to growth.  Others countered that ñLone Treeò was viewed as being 

a beautiful spot and was a name that was dear to the pioneers.  The proponents of the change won out and the 

Court officially changed the name.  Central City would become a óboomô town with the arrival of the second 

railroad, the Burlington & Missouri River.  During this peak growth three banks, hardware store, a roller 

mill, two newspapers, three lumberyards, a cracker factory, a cigar factory, a new brick school, nine 

churches and the Nebraska Central College, came to pass. 
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TRAVEL KANSAS ñNORTH TO SOUTH ñEAST TO WEST by Neal E. Danielson 

 

     Travel KansasðCleburne located in Riley County (Figures 1 & 2) 

and is considered one of the river towns in the County.  Cleburne is 

located in Swede Township along the Union Pacific Railroad on the Big 

Blue River north of Manhattan, the County Seat.  The town of Cleburne 

received its name from John C. Cleburne, a railway superintendent.  

Riley County received its name as a result of the military post of Fort 

Riley along with General Benjamin Riley an officer in the United States 

Army.  Rileyôs first service in Kansas was on Cow Island with Captain 

Martin in 1818 and he followed Colonel Leavenworth as commandant 

at Fort Leavenworth.  Cow Island, located in the middle of the Missouri 

River was the first Kansas military post, which the French called Isle au 

Vache and has been referred to, in time, as Buffalo Island.  Apparently 

the Indians stole a cow and took it to the Island resulting in the name 

Cow Island.  In 1852 a Col. T. T. Fauntleroy, in a letter to the 

Quartermaster, General Jessep of the U. S. Army, while he was in 

Washington D. C, recommended establishment of present day Fort 

Riley. Fauntleroyôs theory was to concentrate troops at the new Fort and 

discontinue the Posts at Leavenworth, Scott, Atchison, Kearney and 

Laramie.  At first the encampment was called ñCamp Center, at the 

mouth of the Pawnee River.ò  It took the name of ñFort Rileyò on July 

26, 1858. 
 

     The physical features of the county include about 20 percent bottom-

lands and 80 percent uplands, with 95 percent of the land being classified as prairie.  Only six percent of the 

land is considered forest.  There are quite a variety of timber in the County, including cottonwood the most 

abundant and several kinds of oak and elm; black walnut, soft maple, hackberry, hickory, locust, ash, linden, 

sycamore, mulberry, box elder, and coffee bean make up the forest tree population.  Cultivated groves 

include soft maple, black walnut, locust and cottonwood are quite common.  The cultivated orchards include 

apples, pears and peaches in copious amounts.  The Big Blue forms the larger portion of the eastern 

boundary of the County, which flows into the Kaw east of Manhattan.  A large part of the Kansas River 

between the Big Blue and the Republican Rivers has some of the ógarden-landsô of the State.  Steamboats 

came up the river to Manhattan during the territorial days, thus the area prospered believing that the 

Mississippi, Missouri, and Kansas Rivers would reap the benefits of Federal Government appropriations in 

order to carry products of the soil down river on barges to the Gulf of Mexico where they would be shipped 

to the Old World. 

 

     The northeast part of the County, and its area is about fifty miles is called the Swede Creek Township.  

The Township was organized on August 4, 1879 with H. H. Rice being the first Trustee.  He was followed in 

1880-82 by Frederic Toburen.  The post-office was in Big Timber on December 5, 1878 with Maynus 

Vilander as postmaster.  The post-office would be called Big Timber until November 12, 1886 when the 

name changed to Cleburne.  The Cleburne post-office would close July 31, 1960.  Swede Creek Township 

name was derived from the creek that flows through it.  The Swede Creek was named to honor a 

Scandinavian, by the name of Peter Carlson who settled in the area in 1857.    
                                                                                                                                                
 

Figure 1-Riley County 

Railroad Map ca1899 

Figure 2-Riley County 
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         Other Scandinavian immigrants settled in the Swede Creek area including L. Pierson in 1858 just 

below the mouth of the creek, then a Dane, N. Christenson, settled a little further down along the Big Blue.  

The Meyer Brothers arrived later in 1858 and Frederic Toburen, a Trustee made a settlement in the township.  

He later moved his parents and his brothers, Herman and Adolph to the settlement.  The German Evangelical 

Church erected their structure in 1877.  Eventually the township contained two frame schoolhouses and three 

stone schoolhouses.  The settlement prospered and became a thriving community with structures such as 

Johnson Brothers store (Figure 3).   
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 3--Johnson Brothers Store ca 1907 

Figure 4-Birthday Greetings post-card Cleburne, Kans. in Danish 
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           The community enjoyed several families from the Scandinavian countries, such as Sweden, Norway, 

and Denmark, as was noticeable in other settlements throughout the County.  Many individuals would learn 

English but often communicated in their homeland language.  Figure 4 is a Birthday greeting post card 

Postmarked from Cleburne, Kans on Oct 2, 1912 franked with a one cent Benjamin Franklin stamp (Scott 

#331) and tied to the post card with a four-bar balloon cancel and sent to a Mrs. Adolph Peterson in 

Stockdale, Kansas R. F. D.  The Birthday Greeting post card was from a M. B. and the message is in Danish: 

ñHappy and Joyous Birthday and many more to come with good health and blessings we wish you.  

Sincerely M. B.  The reverse side had a message in English ñMany Happy Returns of the Dayò (Figure 5). 

The Stockdale post-office was opened on April 29, 1872 and closed on April 22, 1943. 
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Blue Skyways website:  http://skyways.lib.ks.us/counties   
Rydjord, John, ñKansas Place-Namesò, University of Oklahoma Press, Norman, Okla. 1972 
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Figure 1--Bird's Eye View of Fairgrounds Figure 2-Bird's Eye View of St. Louis Fair 

MEET ME IN ST. LOUIS  by Neal E. Danielson 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

        To usher in the 20
th
 Century an international exposition was held in St. Louis, Missouri to 

commemorate the centennial of the 1803 Louisiana Purchase.  However, it was informally known as the St. 

Louis Worldôs Fair that was held in 1904.  The Fair was delayed due to some flooding of the Mississippi and 

to also permit participation by more states.  The result was that 43 of the then 45 states along with 62 foreign 

nations exhibited.  The 1,240 acre Fairgrounds permitted 1,500 buildings and 75 miles of roads and 

walkways to be constructed, so if you were to give a hurried glance at each exhibit it would take over a week 

to tour (Figure 1 & 2).    

 

         The St. Louis Worldôs Fair was held from April 30, 1904 through December 1, 1904. Keep in mind that 

1903 was also the centennial of the Wright Brothers first flight in Kitty Hawk.  The 1903 Louisiana Purchase 

initiated by President Thomas Jefferson, who in 1904 appointed Meriwether Lewis and William Clark to 

travel the land and document their findings from St. Louis to the West Coast of Oregon.  The Fairgrounds 

featured industries, cities, private organizations and corporations, theater troupes, and music schools.  There 

were some 50 concession-type amusements found on ñThe Pikeò; which provided educational and scientific 

displays, exhibits and imaginary ótravelô to distant lands, and just plain old fashion entertainment.    
 
 

         The St. Louis Worldôs Fair has been credited in bringing new foods to the market and some claims of 

introduction for the first time during the Fair.  The most popular claim was the introduction of the waffle-

style ice cream cone.  This popular item was even used by the U. S. Postal Service in their Celebrate the 

Century-1900ôs Souvenir Sheet depicting two children holding an ice cream cone (Scott #3182e).  Some say 

it was not invented at the Fair but it became popular at the Fair.  There were other food items that laid claim 

to being born during the Worldôs Fair, such as the hamburger and hot dog (both are traditional American 

foods), peanut butter, iced tea, and cotton candy.  Two items, Dr. Pepper and Puffed Wheat cereal were first 

introduced to a national audience at the Fair.  
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     What is the old saying ñDonôt take any wooden nickelsò.  Well how about taking a wooden post card 

from the St. Louis Worldôs Fair (Figure 3)?  The St. Louis Worldôs Fair was an opportunity for the Post 

Office Department to issue a set of five stamp commemorating the Louisiana Purchase Exposition (Scott 

#ôers 323-327) issued on April 30, 1904.  The wooden post card is franked with one of these stamps the 1¢ 

Robert R. Livingston (Scott #323) and tied to the card with a double-oval St. Louis cancel that was popular 

during the Fair.  The wooden post card was sent to an individual that lived in Germantown Philadelphia, 

Pennsylvania.  The post card depicts a young lady dressed in the period attire and states ñI am a Post Card 

From Miss Zooryò apparently referencing the young lady.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 3--Wooden Post Card from St. Louis World's Fair 

Figure 4--Message Side of Wooden Post Card 










